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CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Independent Auditors’ Report

TO THE MEMBERS OF KRISHNAAV ENGINEERING LIMITED
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Standalone Ind AS financial statements of KRISHNAAV ENGINEERING
LIMITED (“the Company”) which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025, the Statement of
Profit and Loss, (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity, Cash Flow

Statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid Standalone Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act,
2013 Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian accounting
standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act (“Ind AS”) and accounting principles generally accepted
in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2025, and its Profit/Loss, total
comprehensive income, changes in equity and its Cash Flow for the year ended on that date,

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the standalone Ind As Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants (“ICAI”) of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to
our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013
and the Rules there under, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed
in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Reporting of Key Audit matters is not applicable to the company as it is an unlisted company.

Information other than the financial statements and Auditor’s report thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of its report
(hereinafter called as “Board Report”) which comprises various information required under section 134(3)
of the Companies Act 2013, but does not include the standalone Ind AS financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone Ind AS financial statements does not cover the Board Report and we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent with the
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standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s and Board of Director’s Responsibility for the Standalone Ind AS
Financial Statements

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in Section
134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these Standalone Ind AS financial statements that
give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive
income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, including Ind AS specified under section 133 of the Act., read with the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2015. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively
for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the standalone Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone Ind AS financial statements, management and Board of Directors are
responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management

either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do
s0.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company’s financial reporting process

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the standalone Ind AS Financial

Statements

1. Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone Ind AS financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone Ind AS financial statements.

2. As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

a. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that insufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

b. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit

procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the company’s internal control systems.
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c. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

d. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the standalone Ind AS financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

e. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone Ind AS financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the standalone Ind AS financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Other Matter

The statutory audit was conducted via making arrangements to provide requisite documents /
information through electronic medium as an alternative audit procedure.

As part of alternative audit procedures, the company has made available the following information/
documents/ records/ explanations to us through e-mails or remote secure network of the company.

a. Scanned copies of the necessary records/ documents / deeds / certificates and other related
records made available electronically to us through e-mails or remote secure network of the
company.

b. By way of enquiry through video conferencing, dialogues and discussion over phones, emails and
similar communication channels.

It has also been represented by the management that the data and information provided for the purpose
of audit are correct, complete, reliable and are generated directly from the accounting systems of the
Company, extracted from the records and files, without any further manual modification, so as to
maintain its integrity, authenticity, readability and completeness. In addition, based on our review of
the various records/ documents etc. nothing has come to our knowledge that makes us believe that such
alternate audit procedures would not be adequate.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order™), as amended, issued
by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we
give in the “Annexure A” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the
Order.

2. A As required by section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:
(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to

the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our
audit;
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(b) In our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by
the Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books except
as reported in paragraph 2B(vi);

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other
Comprehensive Income, Statement of Changes in Equity and the Cash Flow
Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of
account;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Standalone financial statements comply with the
Indian Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act, read with
the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2015.

(e) On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on March
31, 2025 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is
disqualified as on March 31, 2025 from being appointed as a director in terms
of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

(f) The modifications relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters
connected herewith are as stated in the paragraph 2A(b) above on reporting
under Section 143(3) and paragraph 2B(vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(g)
of the Companies ( Audit & Auditors) Rules,2014.

(g) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls,
refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B”,

B. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i.

fii.

iv.

The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its
financial position except as referred in Annexure-A Clause 7 (b) of Audit Report.

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts
for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

(a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief,
no funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been
advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium
or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person
or entity, including foreign entity (“Intermediaries"), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall,
whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company ("Ultimate
Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and

belief, no funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate)
have been received by the Company from any person or entity, including
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(c)

foreign entity ("Funding Parties"), with the understanding, whether recorded
in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or
indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries;

Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has
caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of
Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material
misstatement.

(a) The Company has not proposed any dividend in the previous year thus

company has not paid any final dividend during year.

(b) The Company has not declared and paid any interim dividend during the year.

(c) The Board of Directors of the Company has not proposed any final dividend

for the year.

vi. Based on our examination, which included test checks, the Company has used
accounting software (SAP) for maintaining its books of account for the financial
year ended March 31, 2025 which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log)
facility except that audit trail was not enabled at the database level to log any
direct data changes.

For accounting software for which audit trail feature is enabled , the audit trail
facility has been operating throughout the year for all relevant transactions
recorded in the software. Further, during the course of our audit we did not come
across any instance of the audit trail feature being tampered with.

For Jain Kapoor & Associates

Chartered Accountants
FRN 019712N

CA. RupavK!Jain
Partner

M. No.: 503081

Place of signing: Delhi

Date: 23" August 2025
Place : Delhi

UDIN: Q\5\b3o&) M NUKPGL3-
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ANNEXURE-A REFERRED TO IN THE AUDITOR’S REPORT (THE COMPANIES (AUDITOR’S
REPORT) ORDER, 2020) TO THE MEMBERS OF KRISHNAAV ENGINEERING LIMITED ON THE
ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31°" MARCH 2025

1)

2)

3)

4)

3)

a)

b)

c)

d)

e)

f)

b)

The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of Property, Plant & Equipment;

Property, Plant & Equipment have been physically verified by the management in a phased
manner, designed to cover all the items over a period of three years, which is in our opinion, is
reasonable having regard to the size of the company and nature of its business. Pursuant to the
program, a portion of the PPE has been physically verified by the management during the year
and no material discrepancies between the books records and the physical PPE have been
noticed.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the company, the title deeds of the properties were found to be in the name
of the company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not revalued its
property, plant and Equipment (including right to use, assets) and its intangible assets during the
year under reporting. Accordingly, the requirements under paragraph 3(i)(d) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no proceeding has been initiated or
pending against the Company for holding Benami property under the Benami Transactions
(Prohibition) Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder. Accordingly, the provisions stated in
paragraph 3(i) (e) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

The Company is not having any intangible assets except computer software licenses.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has conducted physical
verification of inventory at reasonable intervals and no material discrepancies were noticed in
such verification with respect to Financial Statements.

According to the information and explanations provided to us, the Company has not been
sanctioned working capital limits in excess of INR 5 crores in aggregate on the basis of security
of current assets.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not made any
investments or provided any loans to companies, firms or other parties covered in the Register
maintained under Section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013 Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (iii)
(a) to (f) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not
given any guarantees for loans taken by others from banks or financial institutions in compliance with
the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 during the financial year.

The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public and hence the directives issued by the
Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of Sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the
Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposit) Rules, 2015 with regard to the deposits accepted
from the public are not applicable.
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6) The company is not required to maintain cost records as specified by the Central government under
sub-section (1) of section 148 of the company Act, 2013.

7)

8)

9)

a)

b)

According to information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
books of account, and records, the Company has been generally regular in depositing undisputed
statutory dues including Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax, Goods &
Service Tax, duty of custom and any other statutory dues with the appropriate authorities.
According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in
respect of the above were in arrears as at March 31, 2025 for a period of more than six months
from the date on when they become payable.

According to the information and explanation given to us, there are dues pending of income tax,
goods and service tax (GST), outstanding on account of any dispute.

Name of the Nature of Due Amount (Rs.) Period to which Forum
Statute In Lakhs** the amount relates where
dispute is
pending
Income Tax Income Tax 7.43 AY 2016-17 AO
Act, 1961
Income Tax Income Tax 39.00 AY 2017-18 CIT (A)
Act, 1961
Income Tax Income Tax 2.67 AY 2019-20 AO
Act, 1961
CGST Act GST 1002 FY 2024-25 Allahabad
2017 High Court

** The amount does not include applicable interest and penalty except GST amount.

According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no transactions which are not
accounted in the books of account which have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the
year in Tax Assessment of the Company. Also, there are no previously unrecorded income which has
been now recorded in the books of account. Hence, the provision stated in paragraph 3(viii) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

a)

b)

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowings or in payment of interest thereon to any
lender.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our audit

procedures, we report that the company has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or
financial institution or government or any government authority.
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c)

d)

e)

f)

10)
a)

b)

11)

a)

b)

c)

In our opinion and according to the information explanation provided to us, money raised (if any)
by way of term loans during the year have been applied for the purpose for which they were
raised.

In our opinion, according to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures
performed by us, and on an overall examination of the standalone financial statements of the
company, we report that no funds raised (if any) on short-term basis have been used for long-
term purposes by the company.

According to the information explanation given to us and on an overall examination of the
standalone financial statements of the Company, we report that the company has not taken any
funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries,
associates or joint ventures.

According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us, we
report that the Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in
its securities, joint ventures or associate companies.

Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given by the
management, the company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public
offer including debt instruments and term Loans.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, clause
3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

During the course of our audit, examination of the books and records of the Company, carried
out in accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the
information and explanations given to us, we have neither come across any instance of fraud by
the Company nor on the Company.

We have not come across of any instance of fraud by the Company or on the Company during the
course of audit of the standalone financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2025,
accordingly the provisions stated in paragraph (xi)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle-blower complaints received by
the Company during the year. Accordingly, the provisions stated in paragraph (xi)(c) of the Order
is not applicable to company.

12) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a
Nidhi Company. Accordingly, the provisions stated in paragraph 3(xii) (a) to (c) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.

13) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the transactions with
related parties are in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Act, where applicable, and the
details of the related party transactions have been disclosed in the standalone financial statements
as required by the applicable accounting standards.
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14)
a) In our opinion and based on our examination, the Company does not require to comply with
provision of section 138 of the Act. Hence, the provisions stated in paragraph 3(xiv) (a) to (b) of
the Order are not applicable to the Company.

b) The company is not having an internal audit system for the period under audit.

15) According to the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given by the
management, the company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons
connected with him. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (xv)(a)of the Order are not applicable to
the Company and hence not commented upon.

16)
a) In our opinion, the Company is not required to be registered under section 45 IA of the Reserve
Bank of India Act, 1934 and accordingly, the provisions stated in paragraph clause 3 (xvi)(a) of
the Order are not applicable to the Company.

b) In our opinion, the Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance
activities without any valid Certificate of Registration from Reserve Bank of India. Hence, the
reporting under paragraph clause 3 (xvi)(b) of the Order are not applicable to the Company

€) The Company is not a Core investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by
Reserve Bank of India. Hence, the reporting under paragraph clause 3 (xvi)(c) of the Order are
not applicable to the Company.

d) The Company is not part of any group (as per the provisions of the Core Investment Companies
(Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 as amended). Accordingly, the requirements of clause 3(xvi)(d )
are not applicable.

17) Based on the overall review of standalone financial statements, the Company has not incurred cash
losses in the current financial year or in the immediately preceding financial year.

18) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Hence, the provisions stated
in paragraph clause 3 (xviii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

19) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios,
ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other
information accompanying the standalone financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of
Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the
assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material
uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that the Company is not capable of meeting its
liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year
from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future
viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of
the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due
within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and
when they fall due.
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20) According to the information and explanations given to us, the provisions of section 135 of the Act

are not applicable to the Company. Hence, the provisions of paragraph (xx)(a) to (b) of the Order
are not applicable to the Company.

For Jain Kapoor & Associates
Chartered Accountants
FRNO19712N

CA. RupglK.Jain
Partne
M. No.: 503081

Place : Delhi
Date: 23" August 2025

UDIN: 2 o] =M

MNURD G271
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“Annexure B” to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date on the Standalone Ind AS Financial
Statements of KRISHNAAY ENGINEERING LIMITED

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Krishnaav Engineering Limited
(“the Company”) as of March 31, 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s and Board of Director’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls
The Company’s management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and maintaining
internal financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by
the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (‘ICAI’). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance
of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the
Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on
Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013,
to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal
Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards
and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial
reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial
controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of the standalone
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that
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(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;

(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation
of the standalone financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance
with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and

(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements. :

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial
control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the
degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system
over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating
effectively as at March 31, 2025, based on the criteria for internal financial control with reference to
Standalone Financial Statements established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting issued by the ICAI.

For Jain Kapoor & Associates
Chartered Accountants
FRNO19712N

Place : Delhi
Date: 23" August 2025

UDIN: 25307208 A MmN VR0A2%22
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Krishnaav Engineering Limited
CIN - U34521DL1989PLC034900

GA-2, BLOCK NO. B-1 EXTENSION, MOHAN CO-OP INDL ESTATE, DELHI, INDIA

Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025
(INR in Million)

Particulars Note No. Asat Agat ks
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 April 1, 2023
1. ASSETS
(1) Non-Current Assets
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 3 36.65 39.38 22.33
(b) Capital work-in-progress 7 1.48 0.67 9.55
(¢) Intangible assets 5 - E -
(d) Right-of-use assets 6 8.70 8.80 8.90
(e) Financial Assets
(i) Other non-current financial assets 7 477 4.60 444
(f) Deferred tax assets (net) 8 0.19 0.39 0.78
51.78 53.84 46.00
(2) Current assets
(a) Inventories 9 39.48 3255 33.81
(b) Financial Assets
(i) Trade Receivables 10 E - 15.57
(ii) Cash and Cash Equivalents 11 0.83 2.04 3.64
(iii) Other Current financial assets 7 0.07 0.01 0.04
(c) Current Tax Assets (Net) 12 723 6.31 6.88
(d) Other Current Assets 13 3.43 5.60 1.68
51.04 46.50 61.61
Total Assets 102.83 100.34 107.62
II. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
(1) Equity
(a) Equity Share Capital 14 482 482 4.82
(b) Others Equity 15 52.97 50.02 50.27
57.79 54.84 55.09
Liabilities
(1) Non Current Liabilities
(a) Provisions 16 1.86 1.52 1.49
1.86 1.52 1.49
(2) Current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Trade Payables
Total outstan.d ing dues of micro enterprises and 13.07 11.39 2913
small enterprises 17
T(?tal outstanc.ling dues of creditors lother than 14.30 9.45 10.25
micro enterprises and small enterprises
(ii) Other Current financial liabilities 18 10.72 8.42 8.10
(b) Other Current Liabilities 19 5.05 14.41 3.30
(c) Provisions 16 0.04 0.32 0.26
43.18 43.99 51.04
Total Equity & Liabilities 102.83 100.34 107.62
Summary of significant accounting policies 2
Notes to Accounts 1-50
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
As per our report of even date attached
For Jain Kapoor & Associates For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Krishnaav Engineering Limited

Firm Regd No.0}Q712N

K@ia__t&l*_‘r:'

019y12N Revati Talwar Gupta  Raj Kumar
Director Director
Place : New Delhi DIN : 07262488 DIN : 07963035

Date : 23rd August 2025



Krishnaav Engineering Limited
CIN - U34521DL1989PLC034900

GA-2, BLOCK NO. B-1 EXTENSION, MOHAN CO-OP INDL ESTATE, DELHI, INDIA

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2025

(INR in Million)
: For year ended For year ended
Farticuon NoteNo | yr th 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Income
Revenue from operations 20 497.50 413.29
Other Income 21 0.73 0.45
Total Income (I) 498.23 413.75
Expenses
Cost of materials consumed 22 385.38 302.13
Change in inventories 23 (4.07) 0.02
Employee benefits expense 24 9.35 16.59
Finance costs 25 0.23 0.09
Depreciation and amortization expense 3&5&6 4.61 3.57
Other expenses 26 98.89 90.96
Total Expenses (II) 494.39 413.37
IIL. Profit/(Loss) before Tax (I - II) 3.84 0.38
V. Tax expense:
(1) Current tax 28 0.63 -
(2) Deferred Tax (Income)/Expense 0.22 0.45
V. Profit/(Loss) for the period (III-IV) 2.99 (0.07)
Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)
A. (i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
- Remeasurement of Defined Benefit Obligations (0.06) (0.24)
(i) Income Tax (Expense)/Credit Relating to items that will not be 0.01 0.06
reclassified to Profit or Loss
(0.04) (0.18)
B. (i) Items that will be reclassified to Profit or Loss - Gains and (Losses) - <
(ii) Income tax (expense)/credit relating to items that will be reclassified to ) .
profit or loss
VI. Total Other Comprehensive Income/(Loss) for the year, net of Taxes (0.04) (0.18)
VII Total Comprehensive Income for the year (V+VI) 2.95 (0.25)
VIII. Earning per equity share
(1) Basic & Diluted earnings per share 6.21 (0.15)
(2) Basic & Diluted earnings per share 27 6.21 (0.15)
Summary of significant accounting policies 2
Notes to Accounts 1-50

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
As per our report of even date attached

For Jain Kapoor & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Firm Regd No.019712N
CA. Rup ain
Partner

Membership No. 503081
Place : New Delhi
Date : 23rd August 2025

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Krishnaav Engineering Limited

Revaﬂ;\- Talwe—

Revati Talwar Gupta
Director
DIN : 07262488

Raj Kumar'Singh
Director
DIN : 07963035




Krishnaav Engineering Limited
CIN - U34521DL1989PLC034900

GA-2, BLOCK NO. B-1 EXTENSION, MOHAN CO-OP INDL ESTATE, DELHI, INDIA

Statement of Cash Flow for the Year ended March 31, 2025

(INR in Million)

. For year ended For year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net Profit Before Taxation & Extraordinary Item 3.84 0.28
Adjustments For:
Depreciation/ Amortization 4.61 3.57
Interest Income (0.21) (0.24)
(Profit)/ Loss on Sale of Fixed asset - (0.21)
440 3.12
Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes 8.24 3.49
Working Capital Adjustments:
(Increase)/ Decrease in Inventories (6.93) 1.26
(Increase)/ Decrease in Trade Receivable - : 557
(Increase)/ Decrease in Other Current Assets 217 (3.92)
(Increase)/ Decrease in Other Current financial assets (0.99) 0.60
(Increase)/ Decrease in Other non Current financial assets (0.17) (0.16)
Increase/ (Decrease) in Trade Payable 6.53 (18.55)
Increase/ (Decrease) in Other financial Liabilities 2.29 0.33
Increase/ (Decrease) in Other Current Liabilities (9.36) 11.11
Increase,/ (Decrease) in Provisions 0.01 (0.15)
Cash Generated from Operating Activities 1.80 9.58
Taxes Paid/ (Refund) (0.63) -
Net Cash Flow from Operating Activities (A) 117 9.58
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of fixed assets (2.59) (12.82)
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets - 1.39
Interest Income 0.21 0.24
Net Cash Used in Investing Activities (B) (2.38) (11.18)
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Net Cash used in Financing Activities (C) - -
Net Increase / (Decrease) in Cash & Cash Equivalents (A+B+C) (3:22) (1.60)
Cash & Cash Equivalents at Beginning of the Year 2.03 3.64
Cash & Cash Equivalents at End of the Year 0.83 2.03
Note: Cash and cash equivalents included in the Cash Flow Statement comprise of the following:-
(INR in Million)
i) Cash balance in Hand - =
ii) Balance with Banks:
- In Current Accounts 0.76 1.97
- Cash on hand 0.07 0.07
Total 0.83 2.04
Notes:

1. The above Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared under the ‘Indirect Method” as set out in Ind AS 7, ‘Statement of Cash Flows’

2. Figures in bracket indicate cash outflow.

3. The accompanying notes 1 to 50 are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached

For Jain Kapoor & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Firm Regd No.019712N
CA. Rup ar Jain
Partner

Membership No. 503081

Place : New Delhi
Date : 23rd August 2025

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Krishnaav Engineering Limited

Revati Talwar Gupta Raj Kumar Singh
Director Director
DIN : 07262488 DIN : 07963035




Krishnaav Engineering Limited
CIN - U34521DL1989PLC034900
GA-2, BLOCK NO. B-1 EXTENSION, MOHAN CO-OP INDL ESTATE, DELHI, INDIA

Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2025

(INR in Million)

. Reserve and Surplus Items of Other Total equity
Particulars Equity Share Capital comprehensive attributable to
Retained Earnings| General Reserve income equity holders of
As at April 01, 2024 482 38.67 11.53 (0.18) 54.84
Profit for the year ended on 31st March, 2025 = 2.99 - (0.04) 2.95
Other comprehensive income /(loss) for the year = - - . =
Dividends - - - . -
As at March 31, 2025 482 41.67 11.53 (0.23) 57.79
(INR in Million)
. . Reserve and Sturplis Items of Other Total equity
Particulars Equity Share Capital comprehensive attributable to
Retained Earnings| General Reserve income equity holders of
As at April 01, 2023 4.82 38.74 11.53 - 55.09
Profit for the year ended on 31st March, 2024 - (0.07) - - (0.07)
Other comprehensive income /(loss) for the year ] - - (0.18) (0.18)
Dividends % - - - -
As at March 31, 2024 182 38.67 11.53 {0.18) 54.81

The accompanying notes 1 to 50 are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached

For Jain Kapoor & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regd No.0¥712N

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Krishnaav Engineering Limited

~\ Revati Talwar Gupta Raj Kumar Sing]

Membership No. 503081
Place : New Delhi
Date : 23rd August 2025

\ Director

Director

DIN : 07963035
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Krishnaav Engineering Limited
CIN - U34521DL1989PLC034900
GA-2, BLOCK NO. B-1 EXTENSION, MOHAN CO-OP INDL ESTATE, DELHI, INDIA

Notes to Financial Statements for the Year Ended March 31, 2025

Note 1: Corporate Information and basis of preparation and presentation

Corporate Information

Krishnaav Engineering Limited is a frontrunner in the production of high quality friction materials. The company
manufactures and market a wide range of Friction products including Casting, Disc Brake Pads, Brake Shoes and Brake
Linings for various automotive and non-automotive brake applications, such as two wheelers, Passenger Cars,
Commercial Vehicles, Railways and Off-the-Road vehicles.

This note provides a list of the material accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements. These
policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

Basis of preparation and presentation

Compliance with Ind AS

The financial statements comply in all material aspects with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under Section
133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) [Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended)] and other
relevant provisions of the Act.

The financial statements up to year ended 31 March 2024 were prepared in accordance with the accounting standards
notified under Companies (Accounting Standard) Rules, 2006 (as amended) and other relevant provisions of the Act
(previous GAAP or Indian GAAP).

These financial statements are the first financial statements of the Company under Ind AS.

The date of transition to Ind AS is 1 April 2023. Refer note 44 for the details of first-time adoption exemptions availed by
the Company and an explanation of how the transition from previous GAAP to Ind AS has affected the Company's
financial position, financial performance and cash flows.

Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis under historical cost convention except for certain assets
and liabilities that are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period, as explained in the respective
accounting policies described in subsequent paragraphs.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated
using another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company takes into account
the characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would take those characteristics into account when pricing
the asset or Hability at the measurement date. Fair value for measurement and / or disclosure purposes in these financial
statements is determined on such a basis, except for value in use in Ind AS 36 Impairment of Assets (See Note 2 (v))

Statement of cash flows

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit/loss before tax is adjusted for the effects of
transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or payments and item
of income or expenses associated with investing of financing flows. The cash flows from operating, investing and
financing activities of the Company are segregated.

Use of Estimates & Judgements

The preparation of financial statements requires the use of accounting estimates which, by definition, will seldom equal
the actual results. Management also needs to exercise judgement in applying the Company's accounting policies,
Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated. They are based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that may have a financial impact on the Company and that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances.

This note provides an overview of the areas that involved a higher degree of judgement or complexity, and items which
are more likely to be materially adjusted due to estimates and assumptions turning out to be different than those
originally assessed. Detailed information about each of these estimates and judgements is included in relevant notes
together with information about the basis of calculation for each affected line item in the financial statements.

The areas involving critical estimates or judgement are:

(1) Estimated useful life of PPE, and intangible assets
The Company reviews the useful lives of property, plant and equipment, and intangible assets at the end of each
reporting period. This reassessment may result in change in depreciation and amortisation expense in future periods.

(2) Inventory write down
The Company reviews the allowance for defective and obsolete items inventory, wherever necessary at the end of each
reporting period.

(3) Estimation of tax expenses, utilisation of deferred tax assets and tax payable
The Company reviews the carrying amount of tax expenses, deferred tax assets and tax payable at the end of each
reporting period.

(4) Probable outcome of matters included under Contingent Liabilities
Management has estimated the possible outflow of resources at the end of each annual reporting financial year, if any
respect of contingencies/litigations against the Company as it is not paessible to predict the outcome of pending m#tte
with accuracy.

(5) Estimation of Defined benefit obligation




(i)

(iii)

e)

a)

b)

a)

b

—

(a

Krishnaav Engineering Limited
CIN - U34521 DL1989PLC034900
GA-2, BLOCK NO. B-1 EXTENSION, MOHAN CO-OP INDL ESTATE, DELHI, INDIA

Notes to Flmncml Statements for the Year Ended March 31, 2025
The cost of post-employment benefits is determined using actuarial valuations. The actuarial valuation involves making
assumptions about discount rates, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the long term nature of these plans,
such estimates are subject to significant uncertainty.
(6) Sales Return

The Company accounts for sales returns accrual by recording an allowance for sales returns concurrent with the
recognition of revenue at the time of a product sale, This allowance is based on the Company's estimate of expected sales
returns. The Company deals in various products and operates in various markets. Accordingly, the estimate of sales
returns is determined primarily by the Company’s historical experience in the markets in which the Company operates.

Current and non-current classification
All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current based on the Company’s normal operating cycle for
each of its businesses, as per the criteria set out in the Schedule III to the Act.

Note 2: Material Accounting Policies followed by the Company

Property, Plant and Equipment (including Capital Work-in-Progress)

The Company had applied for the one time transition exemption of considering the carrying cost on the transition date i.e.
1st April, 2023 as the deemed cost under IND AS, regarded thereafter as historical cost.

Freehold land is carried at cost. All other items of property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less depreciation and
impairment, if any. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items. Capital
Work-in-progress includes expenditure incurred till the assets are put into intended use.

Capital Work-in-Progress are measured at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a separate asset is derecognised when
replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss during the reporting period in
which they are incurred.

Depreciation is charged pro-rata on Straight Line basis in accordance with useful life prescribed in Schedule II of the
Companies Act 2013 on specified fixed assets. Assets which are not specifically provided under Schedule Il have been
depreciated on the basis of below useful life decided by the management of the company.

5. No. Description Useful Life
1 Factory Building 30

2 Computer 3

3 Electrical Installation 10

4 Office Equipments 10

5 Furniture & Fixtures 10

6 Plant & Machinery 15

¥ Mould & Die 15

8 Motor Vehicle 15

9 Computer Software 3

Residual value of Plant and Machinery, Vehicles and Factory Building is estimated at five percent.
The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each
financial year end and adjusted prospectively.

Intangible Assets
Intangible assets acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment
losses. Cost of a non-monetary asset acquired in exchange of another non-monetary asset is measured at fair value.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are included in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

The Company amortizes computer software using the straight-line method over the period of 3 years is recognised in the
statement of profit and loss under the head Depreciation and amortization expense.

The amortisation period for intangible assets with finite useful lives is reviewed at least at each year-end. Changes in
expected useful lives are treated as changes in accounting estimates. Internally generated intangible assets, excluding
capitalized development costs, are not capitalized and expenditure is reflected in the statement of profit and loss in the
year in which the expenditure is incurred.

Leases

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract conveys lh
rlght to control the use of an identified asset for a penod of time in exchange for constderatlon To assess wheth ".

the perrod of the lease and (iii) the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.




Krishnaav Engineering Limited
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Notes to Financial Statements for the Year Ended March 31, 2025

(b) Company as a lessee

iv)

v)

vi)

vii)

viii)

(a)

At the inception of a contract which is or contains a lease, the Company recognises lease liability at the present value of
the future lease payments for non-cancellable period of a lease which is not short term in nature except for lease of low
value items. The future lease payments for such non-cancellable period is discounted using interest rate implicit in the
lease if that rate is readily available or the Company’s incremental borrowing rate. Lease payments include fixed
payments, i.e. amounts expected to be payable by the Company under residual value guarantee, the exercise price of a
purchase option if the Company is reasonably certain to exercise that option and payment of penalties for terminating the
lease if the lease term considered reflects that the Company shall exercise termination option. The Company also
recognises a right of use asset which comprises of amount of initial measurement of the lease liability, any initial direct
cost incurred by the Company and estimated dilapidation costs.

Subsequent to initial measurement, the liability will be reduced for payments made and increased for interest expenses. It
is remeasured to reflect any reassessment or modification. When the lease liability is remeasured, the corresponding
adjustment is reflected in the right of-use asset or Statement of profit and loss, as the case may be.

Right of use assets is amortised over the period of lease. The Company has elected to account for short-term leases and
leases of low-value assefs using the exemption given under Ind AS 116, Leases. Instead of recognising a right-of-use asset
and lease liability, the payments in relation to these are recognised as an expense in profit or loss on a straight-line basis
over the lease term or on another systematic basis if that basis is more representative of the pattern of the Company’s
benefit.

Company as a lessor

Leases for which the Company is a lessor classified as finance or operating lease. Lease income from operating leases
where the Company is a lessor is recognised in income on a straight-line basis over the lease term unless the receipts are
structured to increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate for the expected inflationary cost increases.
The respective leased assets are included in the balance sheet based on their nature.

Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

Goodwill and intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually
for impairment, or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that they might be impaired. Other
assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not
be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value in use.
For the purpose of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable
cash inflows which are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or group of assets (cash-generating
units). Assets other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at the
end of each reporting period.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs consist of interest, ancillary costs and other costs in connection with the borrowing of funds and
exchange differences arising from foreign currency borrowings to the extent they are regarded as an adjustment to interest
costs.

Interest and other borrowing costs attributable to qualifying assets are capitalised upto the date such assets are ready for
their intended use. Other interest and borrowing costs are charged to Statement of Profit and Loss.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an
original maturity of three months or less, that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value. For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, Cash and cash
equivalents includes cash on hand, bank overdraft, deposits held at call with financial institutions, other short-term highly
liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash
and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Inventories

Inventories of Raw Materials, Work-in-Progress, Stores and spares, Finished Goods, Stock-in-trade and Property under
development are stated ‘at cost or net realisable value, whichever is lower’. Goods-in Transit are stated “at cost’. Cost
comprise all cost of purchase, cost of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition. Cost formulae used is First-in-First-out. Due allowance is estimated and made for defective and
obsolete items, wherever necessary.

At each Balance Sheet date, stocks are assessed for impairment. If stock is impaired, the carrying amount is reduced to its
selling price less costs to complete and sell. The impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Investments and other financial assets
Classification .
The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:
(1) those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive income, or through the
Statement of Profit and Loss), and
(2) those measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the Company’s business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual te
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Notes to Financial Statements for the Year Ended March 31, 2025
of the cash flows.

Measurement

Al initial recognition, the Company measures a financial asset (excluding trade receivables which do not contain a
significant financing component) at fair value, Transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial
asset (other than financial assets recorded at fair value through profit or loss) are included in the fair value of the financial
assets. 5

Debt instruments:
Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Company’s business model for managing the asset and the
cash flow characteristics of the asset. The Company classifies its debt instruments into following categories:

(1) Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest are measured at amortised cost. Interest income from these financial assets is included
in other income using the effective interest rate method.

(2) Fair value through profit and loss: Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost are measured at fair value
through statement of Profit and Loss. Interest income from these financial assets is included in other income.

Equity instruments:

The Company measures its equity investment other than in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates at fair value
through profit and loss. However where the Company’s management makes an irrevocable choice on initial recognition to
present fair value gains and losses on specific equity investments in other comprehensive income, there is no subsequent
reclassification, on sale or otherwise, of fair value gains and losses to the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Compound financial instruments:

Preference shares, which are non-convertible and redeemable on a specific date, are classified as compound financial
instruments. The fair value of the asset portion is determined using a market interest rate. This amount is recorded as a
asset on an amortised cost basis until extinguished on redemption of the preference shares. The remainder of the proceeds
is attributable to the equity component of the compound instrument.

This is recognised and included in deemed equity investment, net of income tax effects, and not subsequently measured

Derecognition of financial assets:
The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire
or it transfers the financial asset and the transfer qualifies for derecognition under Ind AS 109,

Impairment of financial assets:

The Company recognises loss allowances using the expected credit loss (ECL) model for the financial assets which are not
fair valued through profit or loss. Loss allowance for trade receivables with no significant financing component is
measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECL. For all other financial assets, expected credit losses are measured at an
amount equal to the 12-month ECL, unless there has been a significant increase in credit risk from initial recognition in
which case those are measured at lifetime ECL. The amount of expected credit losses (or reversal) that is required to be
recognised as an impairment gain or loss is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Income recognition
Interest income from debt instruments is recognised using the effective interest rate method.
Dividends are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss only when the right to receive payment is established.

Financial Liabilities
Financial liabilities comprise borrowings, trade payables and other eligible liabilities.

Classification
The Company classifies its financial liabilities in the following measurement categories:

(1) financial liabilities represented by contingent consideration is measured at fair value through the Statement of Profit
and Loss, and

(2) financial liabilities at amortized cost represented by borrowings, trade and other payables are initially recognized at
fair value, and subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method.

The classification depends on the Company’s business model for managing the financial liabilities and the contractual
terms of the cash flows.

Measurement:
Financial liabilities are initially recognised at fair value. Any transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the
financial Labilities (except financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are deducted from the fair value of
financial liabilities,

Derecognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability shall be derecognised when, and only when, it is extinguished i.e. when the obligation specified i
contract is discharged or cancelled or expires.
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Notes to Financial Statements for the Year Ended March 31, 2025

Offsetting financial instruments
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet where there is a legally
enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously.

Reclassification of Financial Instruments

The Company determines the classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition. After initial recognition,
no reclassification is made for financial assets which are categorised as equity instruments at FVTOCI and financial assets
or financial liabilities that are specifically designated at FVIPL. For financial assets, which are debt instruments, a
reclassification is made only if there is a change in the business model for managing those assets. Changes to the business
model are expected to be infrequent. A change in the business model occurs when the Company either begins or ceases to
perform an activity that is significant to its operations. If the company reclassifies financial assets, it applies the
reclassification prospectively from the reclassification date which is the first day of immediately next reporting period
following the change in business model. The Company does not restate any previously recognised gains, losses (including
impairment gains or losses) or interest.

Segment Reporting:
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision maker.

Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at net of transaction costs incurred and measured at amortised cost. Any difference
between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption amount is recognised in the Statement of Profit and
Loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and the amount can be reliably estimated.
Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

Provisions are measured at the present value of management’s best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the
present obligation at the end of the reporting period. The discount rate used to determine the present value is a pre tax
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability, The increase
in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as interest expense.

Contingent Liabilities are disclosed in respect of possible obligations that arise from past events but their existence will be
confirmed by the occurrence or non occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the
Company or where any present obligation cannot be measured in terms of future outflow of resources or where a reliable
estimate of the obligation cannot be made.

Revenue recognition

The Company manufactures and trades variety of auto components products. Revenue from contract with customer is
measured at fair value of consideration received or receivable, after deduction of any trade discounts, volume rebates and
any taxes or duties collected on behalf of the government which are levied on sales such as goods and service tax, etc.
Revenue is recognised either at a point in time or over time, when (or as) the Company satisfies performance obligations
by transferring the promised goods or services to its customers.

Revenue from Sale of goods

Revenue from sale of goods is recognized when all the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods have been
passed to the buyer, usually on delivery of the goods. The Company collects Goods and Service Tax (G5T) on behalf of the
government and, therefore, these are not economic benefits flowing to the Company. Hence, they are excluded from
revenue.

Interest

Interest income is recognized on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the applicable
interest rate, Interest income is included under the head “other income” in the statement of profit and loss.

Trade receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for goods sold or services performed in the ordinary course of
business and reflects company’s unconditional right to consideration (that is, payment is due only on the passage of time).
Trade receivables of the Company, are recognised initially at the transaction price as they do not contain significant
financing components. The company holds the trade receivables with the objective of collecting the contractual cash flows
and therefore measures them subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less loss allowance.

Income Tax

and to unused tax losses.
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Notes to Financial Statements for the Year Ended March 31, 2025
There are many transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain, The Company
recognises liabilities for anticipated tax issues based on estimates of whether additional taxes will be due. The uncertain
tax positions are measured at the amount expected to be paid to taxation authorities when the Company determines that
the probable outflow of economic resources will occur. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will impact the current and deferred income tax assets and
liabilities in the period in which such determination is made.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method on temporary differences arising between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amount in the financial statement. Deferred income tax is determined using tax
rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period and are excepted to
apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses, only if, it is probable
that future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those temporary differences and losses. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and liabilities and when the
deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority.

Current tax assets and tax liabilities are off set where the Company has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends
either to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss, except to the extent that it relates to items
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

Earnings per share

Basic Earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit after tax attributable to the equity shareholders by the
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial year, adjusted for bonus elements in equity
shares issued during the year and excluding treasury shares.

For the purpose of calculating Diluted earnings per share, the net profit for the period attributable to equity shareholders
and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive
potential equity shares.

Government Grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be
received and the Company will comply with all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to the purchase of property, plant and equipment are included in noncurrent liabilities as
deferred income and are credited to the statement of Profit and Loss on a straight - line basis over the expected lives of
related assets and presented within other income.

Foreign currency translation

Functional and presentation currency

The financial statements are presented in Indian rupee (INR), which is Company’s functional and presentation currency.
Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are recognised at the prevailing exchange rates on the transaction dates, Realised gains
and losses on settlement of foreign currency transactions are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Monetary foreign currency assets and liabilities at the year-end are translated at the year-end exchange rates and the
resultant exchange differences are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of historical cost in foreign currencies are not translated
thereafter.

Recent pronouncements

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. For the year ended March 31, 2025, MCA
has notified Ind A5117 -Insurance Contracts, amendments to Ind AS116 Leases, and amendments to Ind AS521 - The
Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates (relating to assessment of exchangeability, estimation of spot rates, and
enhanced disclosures), via notification G.5.R. 291(E) dated May 7, 2025, applicable for periods beginning April 1, 2025, The
Company assessed the amendments and determined that they do not have a significant impact on its financial statements.
The Company will apply them prospectively from FY 2025-26, with appropriate disclosures in the year of adoption.
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Krishnaav Engineering Limited
CIN - U34521DL1989PLC034900
GA-2, BLOCK NO. B-1 EXTENSION, MOHAN CO-OP INDL ESTATE, DELHI, INDIA

Notes to Financial Statements for the Year Ended March 31, 2025

Note 4 : Capital work-in-progress INR in Million)
Description Amount
Gross carrying value
As at 1st April, 2023 9.55
Additions 0.13
Adjustments/Capitalised during the Year 9.01
As at 31st March, 2024 0.67
Additions 0.81
Adjustments/Capitalised during the Year -
As at 31st March, 2025 1.48
Capital work-in-progress (CWIP) as at March 31,2025 (INR in Million)
Amount in CWIP for a period of
Particulars Less than 1 12 Ve 2.8 Vi More than 3 Total
Year years
Projects in progress 0.81 0.13 - 0.55 1.48
Projects temporarily suspended - - - -
Total 0.81 0.13 - 0.55 1.48
Capital work-in-progress (CWIP) as at March 31,2024 (INR in Million)
Amount in CWIP for a period of
Particulars Less than 1 10 Vg 2 Wit More than 3 Total
Year years
Projects in progress 0.13 - 0.55 - 0.67
Projects temporarily suspended - - - = -
Total 0.13 - 0.55 = 0.67
Capital work-in-progress (CWIP) as at April 01,2023 (INR in Million)
Amount in CWIP for a period of
Particulars Less than 1 1 Wi 08 Wi More than 3 Total
Year years
Projects in progress 9.01 0.55 - = 9.55
Projects temporarily suspended - - - - -
Total 9.01 0.55 - = 9.55




Krishnaav Engineering Limited
CIN - U34521DL1989PLC034900

GA-2, BLOCK NO. B-1 EXTENSION, MOHAN CO-OP INDL ESTATE, DELHI, INDIA

Notes to Financial Statements for the Year Ended March 31, 2025

Note 5: Intangible assets

(INR in Million)

_ Computer

Description So ftvlzfare Total
Gross carrying value *
As at 1st April, 2023 0.00 0.00
Additions - -
Disposals - -
As at 31st March, 2024 0.00 0.00
Additions - -
Disposals - -
As at 31st March, 2025 0.00 0.00
Accumulated depreciation *
As at 1st April, 2023 = &
Charge for the year # 0.00 0.00
Disposals - -
As at 31st March, 2024 0.00 0.00
Charge for the year - -
Disposals = -
As at 31st March, 2025 0.00 0.00
Net carrying amount as at April 1, 2023 0.00 0.00
Net carrying amount as at March 31, 2024 - -
Net carrying amount as at March 31, 2025 - -

*Rs. 3,383.74
Note:

The company has exercised the exemption available under Ind AS 101 for property , plant and
equipment to measure the same at the carrying value as per previous GAAP on the date of
transition i.e. Deemed cost. (Refer Note 44). The deemed cost as at 01.04.2023 and 31.03.2024
has been calculated as under:

Description ‘Rmputer Total
Software
Gross Carrying Value 0.06 0.06
Accumulated Depreciation 0.06 0.06
Net Carrying amount as at April 1, 2023 0.00 0.00
_ Computer

Description Riifberaic Total
Gross Carrying Value 0.06 0.06
Accumulated Depreciation 0.06 0.06
Net Carrying amount as at March 31, 2024 - -




Note 6: Right of Use Assets (INR in Million)
Description Land Total
Gross carrying value
As at 1st April, 2023 9.31 9.31
Additions 2 .
Disposals/ Adjustments - -
As at 31st March, 2024 9.31 9.31
Additions 2 -
Disposals/ Adjustments s =
As at 31st March, 2025 9.31 9.31
Accumulated depreciation
As at 1st April, 2023 041 0.41
Charge for the year 0.10 0.10
Disposals/ Adjustments . <
As at 31st March, 2024 0.51 0.51
Charge for the year 0.10 0.10
Disposals/ Adjustments - -
As at 31st March, 2025 0.61 0.61
Net carrying amount as at April 1, 2023 8.90 8.90
Net carrying amount as at March 31, 2024 8.80 8.80
Net carrying amount as at March 31, 2025 8.70 8.70




Krishnaav Engineering Limited
CIN - U34521DL1989PLC034900

GA-2, BLOCK NO. B-1 EXTENSION, MOHAN CO-OP INDL ESTATE, DELHI, INDIA

Notes to Financial Statements for the Year Ended March 31, 2025

(INR in Million)
As at As at As at
PARTICULARS March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 April1, 2023
Note 7: Other Financial assets
Non-Current
Security Deposits 3.04 3.03 3.03
Bank deposits with more than twelve months maturity* 1.73 1.57 141
Total 4.77 4.60 4.44
Current
Loans, advances to employees 0.07 0.01 0.04
Total 0.07 0.01 0.04
* Held as margin money by bank against bank guarantee to IGL.,
Refer Note 34 & 35 of the Financial Statements
(INR in Million)
Asat As at As at
PARTICULARS March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 April 1, 2023
Note 8: Deferred Tax Assets (Net)
Deferred Tax Assets
Impact of difference between carrying amount of fixed assets in the
financial statements and as per income tax rules - - 0.17
Impact of Defined benefit obligations charged to statement of profit
and loss but allowable as deduction in future years under Income Tax
Act, 1961. 0.57 0.61 0.60
Impact of Business Loss allowable as deduction in future years under
Income Tax Act, 1961. 0.21 - =
0.78 0.61 0.78
Deferred Tax Liability
Impact of difference between carrying amount of fixed assets in the
financial statements and as per income tax rules 0.59 0.22 =
0.59 0.22 -
Total 0.19 0.39 0.78
Refer Note 28 of the Financial Statements
(INR in Million)
As at As at As at
PARTICULARS March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 April 1, 2023
Note 9: Inventories
Raw material 12.65 9.76 11.25
Finished Goods 4.94 599 515
Work-in-progress 18.70 13.58 14.44
Consumable Stores 3.19 3.21 2.97
Total 39.48 32.55 33.81
(INR in Million)
As at As at As at
PARTICULARS March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 April 1, 2023
Note 10: Trade Receivables
Trade receivables considered good - secured = a =
Trade receivables considered good - unsecured - - 15.57
Trade receivables which have significant increase in credit risk G : 2
Trade receivables - credit impaired - - -
Total Trade Receivables - - 15.57
Less: Loss allowance - - -
Net Trade Receivables - = 15.57

(For Ageing, Refer Note 36.1)
Also Refer Note 34 & 35 of the Financial Statements




Krishnaav Engineering Limited

GA-2, BLOCK NO. B-1 EXTENSION, MOHAN CO-OP INDL ESTATE, DELHI, INDIA

CIN - U34521DL1989PLC034900

Notes to Financial Statements for the Year Ended March 31, 2025

(INR in Million)

As at As at As at
PARTICULARS March 31, 2025 | March 31, 2024 April 1, 2023
(INR in Million)
As at As at As at
PARTICULARS March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 April 1, 2023
Note 11: Cash and Cash Equivalents
Current account 0.76 1.97 3.57
Cash on hand 0.07 0.07 0.07
Total 0.83 2.04 3.64
Refer Note 34 & 35 of the Financial Statements
(INR in Million)
As at As at As at
PARTICULARS March 31, 2025 | March 31, 2024 April 1, 2023
Note 12 : Current Tax Asset / (Liability) (Net)
Advance Tax and TDS / TCS 7.86 6.31 7.13
Less : Provision for Income Tax (0.63) 5 (0.26)
Fotal 7.23 6.31 6.88
(INR in Million)
As at As at As at
PARTICULARS March 31, 2025 | March 31, 2024 April 1, 2023
Note 13: Other Current Assets
Balances with government authorities 293 3.97 0.61
Advance to Suppliers 0.42 146 0.93
Prepaid Expenses 0.08 0.18 0.15
Total 3.43 5.60 1.68 |




GA-2, BLOCK NO. B-1 EXTENSION, MOHAN CO-OP INDL ESTATE, DELHI, INDIA

Krishnaav Engineering Limited
CIN - U34521DL1989PLC034900

Notes to Financial Statements for the Year Ended March 31, 2025

Note 14 : Equity Share Capital

(INR in Million)

As at As at As at
PARTICULARS

March 31, 2025 | March 31, 2024 | April 1, 2023
Authorized Capital
14,00,000 equity shares (PY: March 31, 2024 - 14,00,000 ; April 1, 2023- 14,00,000 ) of
Rs. 10/ - each 14.00 14.00 14.00
Issued, Subscribed and Paid Up Capital
4,81,800 equity shares (PY: March 31, 2024 - 4,681,800 ; April 1, 2023- 4,81,800 ) of Rs.
10/- each 482 482 482
Total 4.82 4,82 4.82

14.1 : Terms/rights attached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having face value of Rs.10 per share. Each shareholder is eligible for one vote per share held. In

the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, in proportion of
their shareholding, after distribution of all preferential amounts. However, No such preferential amounts exist, currently, The Distribution will be
in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

14.2 : Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year

As at As at As at
. March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 April 1, 2023
Equity Shares INRin
Nos. INR in Million Nos. INR in Million Nos. Jisy
Million
At the beginning of the year 4,81,800 4.82 4,81,800 4.82 4,81,800 4.82
Add : Issued during the year - - - - - -
Less: Bought back during the year - = 5 = = -
Outstanding at the end of the Year 4,81,800 4.82 4,81,800 4.82 4,81,800 4.82
14.3: Number of shares held by each shareholder holding more than 5 % shares in company are as follows:
As at As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2025 — March 31, 2024 . April 1, 2023 i
Nos. % holding in Nos. % holding in Nos. % holding
the Class the Class in the Class
Allied Nippon Private Limited 4,81,794 100.00% 481,794 100.00% 4,581,794 100.00%
14.4 : Disclosure of Shareholding of Promoters
o,
S nare held Y promoters as ai March 71, 2025 Nos. hottotal | v, Changes during the year
Allied Nippon Private Limited 4,81,794 100.00% 0.00%
Mr, Ravi Talwar* 1 0.00% 0.00%
Mrs, Madhu Talwar* 1 0.00% 0.00%
Mr. Rohan Talwar* 1 0.00% 0.00%
Ms. Revati Talwar* 1 0.00% 0.00%
Ms, Rashi Talwar Bhatia* 1 0.00% 0.00%
Ms. Kanika Talwar* 1 0.00% 0.00%
Total 4,81,800 100.00% 0.00%
Share held by promoters as at March 31, 2024 Nos. % of total T w—
Promoter Name Share
Allied Nippon Private Limited 4,81,794 100.00% 0.00%
Mr. Ravi Talwar* 1 0.00% 0.00%
Mrs. Madhu Talwar* 1 0.00% (.00%
Mr. Rohan Talwar* 1 0.00% 0.00%
Ms. Revati Talwar* 1 0.00% 0.00%
Ms. Rashi Talwar Bhatia* 1 0.00% 0.00%
Ms. Kanika Talwar* 1 0.00% 0.00%
Total 4,81,800 100.00% 0.00%




Krishnaav Engineering Limited
CIN - U34521DL1989PLC034900

GA-2, BLOCK NO. B-1 EXTENSION, MOHAN CO-OP INDL ESTATE, DELHI, INDIA

Notes to Financial Statements for the Year Ended March 31, 2025

3 i

?}:1::01:::1 I:{n Eromoters as at April 1, 2023 Nos. Yo 5012:.]:&1 e iz dcsinig e i
Allied Nippon Private Limited 4,81,794 100.00% 0.00%
Mr. Ravi Talwar* 1 0.00% 0.00%
Mrs, Madhu Talwar* 1 0.00% 0.00%
Mr. Rohan Talwar* 1 0.00% 0.00%
Ms. Revati Talwar* 1 0.00% 0.00%
Ms. Rashi Talwar Bhatia® 1 0.00% 0.00%
Ms. Kanika Talwar* 1 0.00% 0.00%

Total 4,81,800 100.00%: 0.00%

* Held on behalf of Allied Nippon Private Limited

14.5. No class of shares have been allotted as fully paid up pursuant to contract(s) without payment being received in cash or as fully paid up by
way of bonus shares or bought back during the period of 5 years immediately preceding the reporting date,

14.6 Details of Shares held by Holding Company

As at As at As at
Patticuiars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 April 1, 2023
% holding in s holding in % holding
Nos. the Class Nos. the Class e in the Class

Allied Nippon Private Limited 481,794 100.00% 4,81,794 100.00% 4,81,794 100.00%




Krishnaav Engineering Limited

CIN - U34521DL1989PLC034900

GA-2, BLOCK NO. B-1 EXTENSION, MOHAN CO-OP INDL ESTATE, DELHI, INDIA

Notes to Financial Statements for the Year Ended March 31, 2025

Note 15 : Other Equity

(INR in Million)

PARTICULARS As at As at As at
March 31,2025 | March 31, 2024 April 1, 2023
Retained Earnings
Opening balance 38.67 38.74 38.74
Profit /(Loss) during the year 2.99 (0.07) -
Closing balance 41.67 38.67 38.74
General Reserve
Opening balance 11.53 11.53 11.53
Additions during the year - E -
Closing balance 11.53 11.53 11.53
Other Comprehensive Income
Opening balance (0.18) = .
Additions during the year (0.04) (0.18) E
Closing balance (0.23) (0.18) -
Total 52.97 50.02 50.27

Nature and Purpose of Reserves:

Retained earnings - Retained earnings are profits of the Company earned till date.
General Reserve - General reserve are reserves that is created by keeping aside the profits that the company earned in the normal
course of the business of any accounting period for fulfilling various business needs.

Note 16 : Provisions

PARTICULARS As at As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 April 1, 2023

Non Current
Provision for employee benefits
Provision for Gratuity 1.64 142 1.39
Provision for Leave encashment 022 0.09 0.10
Total 1.86 1.52 1.49
Current
Provision for employee benefits
Provision for Gratuity 0.03 0.30 0.25
Provision for Leave encashment 0.02 0.01 0.01
Total 0.04 0.32 0.26

Also Refer Note 38 of the Financial Statements




Krishnaav Engineering Limited
CIN - U34521DL1989PLC034900

GA-2, BLOCK NO. B-1 EXTENSION, MOHAN CO-OP INDL ESTATE, DELHI, INDIA

Notes to Financial Statements for the Year Ended March 31, 2025

(INR in Million)
As at As at As at
PARTICULARS March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 April 1, 2023
Note 17 : Trade Payables
Current
- Due to Micro and Small enterprises (Refer Note 41) 13.07 11.39 29.13
- Dues to others 14.30 9.45 10.25
Total 27.36 20.84 39.38
(For Ageing, Refer to Note 36.2 of the Financial Statements)
Also Refer Note 34 & 35 of the Financial Statements
(INR in Million)
As at As at As at
PARTICULARS March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 April 1, 2023
Note 18 : Other Current financial liabilities
Expense payable 9.13 5.83 5.80
Employee Benefits Payables 1.59 2.59 2.30
Total 10.72 8.42 8.10
Refer Note 34 & 35 of the Financial Statements
(INR in Million)
As at As at As at
PARTICULARS March 31,2025 | March 31, 2024 April 1, 2023
Note 19 : Other current liabilities
Payable to government authorities
- TDS Payable 0.28 018 | 0.05
- TCS Payable 0.01 0.02 0.03
- GST Payable 0.02 4.62 2.80
- Provident Fund Payable 0.07 0.20 0.17
- E.S.I Payable 0.01 0.01 0.01
Advance from Customers 4.67 9.38 0.25
Total 5.05 14.41 3.30




Krishnaav Engineering Limited

CIN - U34521DL1989PLC034900

GA-2, BLOCK NO. B-1 EXTENSION, MOHAN CO-OP INDL ESTATE, DELHI, INDIA

Notes to Financial Statements for the Year Ended March 31, 2025

(INR in Million)

PARTICULARS

For year ended

For year ended

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Note 20: Revenue from operations
Sale of Products
Sale of finished goods 491.17 407 .44
Other operating revenue
Sale of Scrap 6.34 5.85
Total 497.50 413.29
Also refer Note 42 to the Financial Statements
(INR in Million)
For year ended | For year ended
PARTICULARS March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Note 21: Other Income
Interest Income 0.21 0.24
Profit/(Loss) on Sale of Fixed asset - 0.21
Other Income 0.52 -
Forex Loss -Realized 0.00 -
Total 0.73 0.45
(INR in Million)
For year ended For year ended
PARTICULARS March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Note 22 : Cost of materials consumed
Opening Stock 9.76 11.25
Add : Purchases during the year 388.27 300.65
Less : Closing Stock 12.65 9.76
Cost of materials consumed 385.38 302.13
(INR in Million)
For year ended For year ended
i v Mar?:,h 31, 2025 Mar)c(h 31,2024
Note 23 : Change in Inventories
Inventories at the beginning of the year
Finished goods 599 515
Work-in-progress 13.58 14.44
19.57 19.59
Inventories at the end of the year
Finished goods 4.94 5.99
Work-in-progress 18.70 13.58
23.64 19.57
Total (4.07) 0.02

(INR in Million)

PARTICULARS

For year ended

For year ended

March 31,2025 | March 31, 2024

Note 24 : Employee benefits expense

Salaries and Wages 5.97 13.39
Contribution to provident and other funds 0.57 148
Gratuity Expense 0.31 0.28
Leave encashment Expense 1.20 0.08
Staff Welfare Expenses 1.29 1.37
Total 9.35 16.59

Refer Note 38 of the Financial Statements
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GA-2, BLOCK NO. B-1 EXTENSION, MOHAN CO-OP INDL ESTATE, DELHI, INDIA

Notes to Financial Statements for the Year Ended March 31, 2025

(TNR in Million)
For year ended For year ended
EARIICULARR March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
(INR in Million)
For year ended | For year ended
EARTICLLARS March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Note 25 : Finance Cost
Bank Charges 0.23 0.09
Total 0.23 0.09
(INR in Million)
For year ended For year ended
BAREICTEASS March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Note 26 : Other Expenses
Manufacturing Expenses
Power & Fuel 38.58 39.16
Wages /Labour Charges 31.11 2411
Job work Charges 8.76 7.94
Consumption of consumables 12.11 15.16
Repair and maintenance- Plant & Machinery 0.64 0.77
91.19 87.13
Administrative Expenses
Repair and maintenance- Building 0.40 -
Repairs & Maintenance - Other 0.28 0.40
Statutory audit fees 0.38 0.31
Legal and Professional Exps. 2.32 0.21
Travelling & conveyance expenses 0.30 0.42
Insurance expenses 0.27 0.20
Watch & Ward Expenses 1.18 0.99
Rental Expenses 1.85 0.03
Rent, Rates & Taxes 0.10 0.21
Telephone Exps. 0.21 0.18
Miscellaneous Expense 0.03 0.03
Office Expenses 0.10 0.07
Interest & Penalties 0.06 0.08
Other Expenses - 0.55
7.48 3.68
Selling & Distribution Expenses
Freight and cartage outward 0.22 0.14
0.22 0.14
Total 98.89 90.96
(INR in Million)
For year ended | For year ended
EARTICULARS March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Note 27 : Earning Per Share
Profit attributable to Equity Share holders (in Million) (A) 2.99 (0.07)
Weighted average number of Equity Shares outstanding during the
year (B) 4,81,800 4,81,800
Nominal Value of Equity Shares (INR) 10.00 10.00
Basic Earnings Per Share(Rs.) [A/B] 6.21 (0.15)
Diluted Earnings Per Share(Rs.) [A/B] 6.21 (0.15)
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Notes to Financial Statements for the Year Ended March 31, 2025

Note 28 : Income Tax/Deferred Tax
(A) : Income Tax

This note provides an analysis of the Company's income tax expense, show amounts that are recognised directly in equity
and how the tax expense is affected by non-assessable and non-deductible items. It also explains significant estimates in

relation to the Company’s tax position.

(INR in Million)

Particulars it ey
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
The income tax expense consists of the following :
Current tax expense for the current year 0.63 -
Deferred tax expense/ (benefit) 0.22 0.45
Total income tax 0.85 0.45
Reconciliation of tax liability on book profit vis-a-vis actual tax liability
Profit before income taxes 3.84 0.38
Enacted Tax Rate 2517% 2517%
Computed Tax Expense 0.97 0.09
Adjustments in respect of current income tax
Effect of expenses that are not deductible in determining taxable profits - 0.35
Tax Impact of adjustment in Deferred tax due to business losses (0.12) -
Reconciliation of tax liability on book profit vis-a-vis actual tax liability 0.85 0.45
(B) : Deferred Tax
The movement in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the year ended March 31, 2025:
(INR in Million)
March 31, 2024 (Credit)/Charge | (Credit)/charge | March 31, 2025
- Deferred Tax in Statement of in Other - Deferred Tax
Particulars (Asset)/Liabilities | Profitand Loss | Comprehensive | (Asset)/ Liabilities
Income
Impact of Business Loss allowable as
deduction in future years under Income
Tax Act, 1961. : (0.21) 2 (0.21)
Impact of Defined benefit obligations
charged to statement of profit and loss but
allowable as deduction in future years (0.61) 0.05 (0.01) (0.57)
under Income Tax Act, 1961.
(0.61) (0.16) (0.01) (0.78)
Impact of difference between carrying 0.22 0.38 = 0.59
amount of fixed assets in the financial
statements and as per income tax rules
0.22 0.38 - 0.59
Net Deferred Tax Liability/(Asset) (0.39) 0.22 (0.01) (0.19)
The movement in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the year ended March 31, 2024:
(INR in Million)
April 1, 2023 (Credit)/Charge | (Credit)/charge | March 31, 2024
- Deferred Tax in Statement of in Other - Deferred Tax
Particulars (Asset) / Liabilities | Profit and Loss | Comprehensive | (Asset) / Liabilities
Income
Impact of Defined benefit obligations (0.60) 0.06 (0.06) (0.61)
charged to statement of profit and loss but
allowable as deduction in future years
under Income Tax Act, 1961.
(0.60) 0.06 (0.06) (0.61)
Impact of difference between carrying (0.17) 0.39 - 0.22
amount of fixed assets in the financial
statements and as per income tax rules
(0.17) 0.39 -
Net Deferred Tax Liability/(Asset) (0.78) 0.45 (0.06)
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Notes to Financial Statements for the Year Ended March 31, 2025

Note 29 : Contingencies and commitments (INR in Million)
Particulars Ama Spat
March 31,2025 | March 31, 2024
Contingent Liabilities 55.00 4.90
Capital Commitments - -

a. There is contingent liability of INR 4.9 millions under Income Tax Act 1961. (As at 31.03.2024 4.9 Millions)

b. Demand of Rs 50.10 milllion and penalty of Rs. 50.10 million was raised by Joint Commissioner, GST through reference
no. 18/ ADC/GST/GZB/2024-25 dated 29.01.2025 u/s 74 of CGST Act alongwith interest u/s 50(3) of the said Act and
imposing penalty u/s 74(1) of the said Act by Joint Commissioner, CGST Act. The company is not agree with this demand
and has filed writ petition with Allahabad High Court against the same. ( As at 31.03.2024 : NIL)

Note 30 : Payment to Auditors

(INR in Million)
; For year ended For year ended
Entle March 31,2025 | March 31, 2024
Statutory audit fees 0.38 0.31
Tax Audit Fees - -
Out of Pocket Expenses - 0.00
Total 0.38 0.31

Note : The above amounts are exclusive of GST

Note 31 : Current Assets, Loans and Advances
In the opinion of Board of Directors, value of realization of the current assets, loans and advances in the ordinary course of .
business will not be less than the value at which they are stated in the balance sheet.
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Note No. 32 : Ratios

Notes to Financial Statements for the Year Ended March 31, 2025

5 No Ratio Numerator Denominator Ma;;:;l, Mazr[;'_: 431’ % Change | Reason for Variance

a. |Current ratio (in|Current Assets Current Liabilities 1.18 1.06 11.83% |Not applicable
times)

b. |Debt- Equity Ratio|Total Debt Shareholder’s Equity - - 0.00% |Not applicable
(in times)

c. |Debt Service|Earnings for debt|Debt  service = - - 0.00% |Not applicable
Coverage ratio (in|service = Net profit|Interest + Principal
times) after taxes + Non-|Repayments

cash operating
expenses

d. |Return on Equity|Net Profits after|Average 531%| -0.13%| 426376%|Due to Increase in
ratio (in %) taxes Shareholder’s Equity Sales above breakeven

e. |Inventory Turnover|Costof goodssold |Average Inventory 10.70 9.11 17.52% |Not applicable
ratio (in times)

f. |Trade Receivable|Net credit sales Average Trade - 53.09 ( -100.00%|Due to  Complete
Turnover Ratio (in Receivable realization of]|
times) outstanding trade

receivables

g. |Trade Payable|Net credit purchases |Average Trade 16.11 9.98 61.35% | Due to timely
Turnover Ratio (in Payables payments to suppliers.
times)

h. [Net Capital|Net sales Working capital = 6326 | 164.51 -61.55%|Due to Increase in
Turnover Ratio (in Current  assets - Sales above breakeven
times) Current liabilities

i. |Net Profit ratio (in{Net Profit Net sales = Total 0.60%| -0.02%| 3643.80%|Due to Increase in
%) sales - sales return Sales above breakeven

j- |Return on Capital|Earnings before|Capital Employed = 7.05% 0.85%| 725.18%|Due to Increase in
Employed (in %) interest and taxes Tangible Net Worth Sales above breakeven

+ Total Debt +
Deferred Tax
Liability

k. |Return on|Income form|Investment NA NA 0.00% |Not applicable

Investment (in %) Investments
(Interest,  Dividend

etc.)




Note 33 : Related Parties

Krishnaav Engineering Limited
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Notes to Financial Statements for the Year Ended March 31, 2025

As required by Indian Accounting Standard -24, the disclosures of transactions with the related parties are given below:

A. Names of Related Parties and Nature of Relationship

Relationship

Names of related parties

|Holding Company

| Allied Nippon Private Limited

Fellow Subsidiaries

Allied Nippon Components Limited

Enterprises over which the KMP &
relatives have control

Allied Motors Limited

Key Management personnel

Ms. Revati Talwar Gupta (Whole-time director)

GA-2, BLOCK NO. B-1 EXTENSION, MOHAN CO-OP INDL ESTATE, DELHI, INDIA

B. Description of transactions with the related parties in the normal course of business and Closing Balance as on March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024

(INR in Million)

Enterprises over which the
Particulars Holding Company Fellow subsidiaries KMP & relatives have Total
control
(A) Transactions during the year 2024-2025 2023-2024 2024-2025 | 2023-2024 |  2024-2025 2023-2024 2024-2025 2023-2024
Sale of Finished Goods (Inc. GST)
Allied Nippon Private Limited 628.16 52236 - - - - 628.16 522.36
Total 628.16 522.36 - - - - 628.16 522.36
Purchase of consumables (Inc. Taxes)
Allied Motors Limited - - - - 1.28 1.37 1.28 1.37
Total - = = = 1.28 1.37 1.28 1.37
Reimbursement
Allied Nippon Private Limited 0.02 2.94 - - 0.02 2.94
Total 0.02 2.94 - - - - 0.02 294
Purchase of raw material (Inc. Taxes)
Allied Nippon Private Limited 4.23 1.60 - - - - 4.23 1.60
Total 4.23 1.60 - - - - 4.23 1.60
(INR in Million)
Enterprises over which the
Particulars Holding Company Fellow subsidiaries KMP & relatives have Total
control
As at As at
As at Asat As at As at As at As at

OB Baonc e b thas st o the i 31 March 2025 | 31 March2024 | 1 ;;:5"" L ;,';;“h 31 March 2025|31 March 2024|31 March 2025| 31 March 2024
Balances Receivable / (Payable)
Allied Nippon Private Limited (0.57) (15.16) - - - - {0.57) (15.16)
Allied Motors Limited - - - (0.09) - (0.09)
Total (0.57) (15.16) - - - (0.09) (0.57) (15.25)

(INR in Million)
(C) Managerial Remuneration 2024-2025 2023-2024
Balances Receivable / (Payable)
Revati Talwar Gupta 240 0.81
Total 240 0.81
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Notes to Financial Statements for the Year Ended March 31, 2025

Note 34 ; Fair Value Measurement
The fair value of the assets and liabilities are included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction
between willing parties, other than in forced or liquidation sale. The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:

The carrying values of financial instruments by categories are as follows:
(INR in Million)

As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024 As at April 1, 2023
. Fair Value Fair Value Fair Value
Particul i i
cuars through Profit |Amortised Cost| through morised through Profit Amostined
g Cost Cost
or Loss Profit or Loss or Loss
Financial Assets
(i) Trade Receivables - - - - - 15.57
(ii) Cash and Cash Equivalents - 0.83 - 2.04 - 3.64
(iii) Other Current financial assets - 0.07 - 0.01 - 0.04
(iv) Other non current financial assets - 477 B 4.60 4.44
Total - 5.67 - 6.64 - 23.68
Financial Liabilities
(i) Trade Payables - 27.36 - 20.84 - 39.38
(ii) Other current financial liabilities - 10.72 - 8.42 - 8.10
Total - 38.08 - 29.26 - 4748

Note:

(i) Since the Company does not have any financial asset or liability measured at fair value, disclosure of fair value hierarchy and disclosure of
category-wise assets and liabilities is not relevant. All financial assets and liabilities of the Company have been valued at amortised cost and
their vahiies are not exnected to he different than those nresented in financial statements.

(ii) Trade Receivables, cash and cash equivalents, Other bank balances, other financial assets, current borrowings, trade payables and other
current financial liabilities : Fair values approximate their carrying amounts largely due to short-term maturities of these instruments.

Note 35 : Financial Risk Management
The Company is exposed to Market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company's senior management oversees the management of these
risks. The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks, which are summarised below:

A. Market Risk

Market risk is the risk of loss of future earnings, fair value of future cash flows that may result from a change in the price of financial instrument.
The value of a financial instrument may change as a result of changes in the interest rates, equity prices and other market changes that may
effect market sensitivity instruments. Market risk is attributable to all market risk sensitive financial instruments including investments and
deposits, loans and borrowings.

i) Interest Rate Risk
The Company is not exposed to any interest rate risk as there are no floating interest rate loans and borrowings.

ii) Currency risk
The Company is not exposed to any currency risk as there are no ransaction in foreign currency.

iii) Price Risk

The Company is not exposed to any price risk as there is no investment in equities and the company does not deal in commodities.

B. Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that customer or counter-party will not meet its obligation under the contract, leading to financial loss. Credit risk arises

from trade receivables and other financial assets. The Maximum Credit Exposure is equal to the carrying value of financial assets. The Company
assesses the credit quality of the counterparties, taking in to account their financial position, past experience and other factors.

Credit Risk relating to securities given is considered negligible as counterparties are having good credit quality.

C. Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company would not be able to meet its financial obligation when they become due. The company is financed
primarily by loans from financial institutions, inter corporate deposits and other operating cash flows. The management assess

funding requirements and available borrowing facilities. These committed facilities are maintained at a level which is suffici
financial obligation, ¢§'
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Notes to Financial Statements for the Year Ended March 31, 2025
Contractual Maturities of financial liabilities
The tables below provide details regarding the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at reporting date based on contractual

undiscounted pavments.

(INR in Million)

As at March 31, 2025 Notdue | VESHANL |y o vears | 2-3pears | Morothan3
year years
(i) Trade Payables 18.67 8.69 - - =
(i) Expenses Payable : 9.13 - - -
(iii) Employee Benefits Payables - 1.59 - - -
Total 18.67 19.41 - - -
As at March 31, 2024 Not due Lesathand 1-2years 2 -3 years Mmesi g
year years
(i) Trade Payables 12,67 8.16 - - -
(if) Expenses Payable - 5.83 z - -
(iii) Employee Benefits Payables - 2.59 - - -
Total 12.67 16.59 = ] -
As at April 1, 2023 Not due L thand 1-2years 2-3years o than 3
year years
(i) Trade Payables 14.26 2512 - - -
(i) Expenses Payable - 5.80 5 = =
(iii) Employee Benefits Payables & 2.30 - - -
Total 14.26 33.22 - - -
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Note 36 : Ageing Schedule

Krishnaav Engineering Limited
CIN - U34521DL1989PLC034900

Notes to Financial Statements for the Year Ended March 31, 2025

Note 36.1 Trade Receivable Ageing
Trade Receivable ageing schedule as at March 31, 2025

(INR in Million)

Particulars

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Not due

Less than 6
month

6 months -1
Year

1-2 Years

2-3 Years

More than 3
years

Total

(i) Undisputed Trade receivable
considered good

(ii) Undisputed Trade receivable -
which have significant increase in
credit risk

(iif) Undisputed Trade receivable -
credit impaired

(iv) Disputed Trade receivable
considered good

(v) Disputed Trade receivable -
which have significant increase in
credit risk

(vi) Disputed Trade receivable -
credit impaired

Total

Trade Receivable ageing schedule

as at March 31, 2024

(INR in Million)

Particulars

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Not due

Less than 6
month

6 months -1
Year

1-2 Years

2-3 Years

More than 3
years

Total

(i) Undisputed Trade receivable
considered good

(il) Undisputed Trade receivable -
which have significant increase in
credit risk

{iif} Undisputed Trade receivable -
credit impaired

(iv) Disputed Trade receivable
considered good

(v) Disputed Trade receivable -
which have significant increase in
credit risk

(vi) Disputed Trade receivable -
credit impaired

Total

Trade Receivable ageing schedule

as at April 1, 2023

(INR in Million)

Particulars

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Not due

Less than 6
month

6 months -1
Year

1-2 Years

2-3 Years

More than 3
years

Total

(i) Undisputed Trade receivable
considered good

12,94

1.10

1.24

0.28

15,57

(if) Undisputed Trade receivable -
which have significant increase in
credit risk

(iii) Undisputed Trade receivable -
credit impaired

(iv) Disputed Trade receivable
considered good

(v) Disputed Trade receivable -
which have significant increase in
credit risk

(vi) Disputed Trade receivable -
credit impaired

Total

12.94

0.28

15.57
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Note 36.2: Trade Payable Ageing

Notes to Financial Statements for the Year Ended March 31, 2025

Trade Payable ageing schedule as at March 31, 2025 (INR in Million)
Qutstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Rty Not due Eesythand 1-2 Years 2-3 Years Matethan 3 Tl
Year years

(i) Micro & Small Enterprises 10.42 2.64 - - - 13.07
(ii) Others 8.25 6.01 0.00 0.04 0.01 14.30
(iii) Disputed dues-Micro & Small

Enterprises ) ) ) ) ) )
(iv) Disputed dues-Others - . - - - -
Total 18.67 8.65 0.00 0.04 0.01 27.36

Trade Payable ageing schedule as at March 31, 2024

(INR in Million)

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Faticulin Not due Less than 1 1-2 Years 2-3 Years Miowe thanS Total
Year years
{i) Micro & Small Enterprises 931 2.08 - - = 11.39
(ii) Others 3.37 1.27 4.53 0.26 0.02 9.45
(iii) Disputed dues-Micro & Small
Enterprises ) ) ) B ) B
(iv) Disputed dues-Others - 7 % - - -
Total 12.67 3.35 4.53 0.26 0.02 20.84
Trade Payable ageing schedule as at April 1, 2023 (INR in Million)
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Particulars Nt e Less than 1 12 Years 2.3 Years More than 3 Total
Year years
(i) Micro & Small Enterprises 14.02 15.11 - - - 29.13
(ii) Others 0.24 2.02 7.10 0.20 0.70 10.25
(iii) Disputed dues-Micro & Small
Enterprises ) ) ) ) B )
(iv) Disputed dues-Others - - - - - -
Total 14.26 17.13 7.10 0.20 0.70 39.38

Note 37: Loans or advances granted to promoters, directors or KMPs:

The Company has not given any loan or advance in nature of loans to any promoters, directors, KMPs or any related parties during the
year ended March 31, 2025 and March 31 , 2024.
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Notes to Financial Statements for the Year Ended March 31, 2025

Note 38 : Employee benefits
(a) Defined Contribution Plans

The Company contributes to the Government managed provident and pension fund for all qualifying employees,

Contribution to Defined Contribution Plans, recognised as expense and included in "Contribution to provident and other funds” in Statement of

Profit and Loss for the year is as under:

(INR in Million)
For year ended | For year ended
PARTICULARS
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Contribution to Provident fund 0.49 1.38
Contribution To Employee State Insurance Scheme 0.09 0.10
Total 0.57 1.48

(b) Defined Benefit Plans: - Gratuity

The Company has defined benefit plan for payment of gratuity to all qualifying employees. It is governed by the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972.
Under this Act, an employee who has completed five years of service is entitled to the specified benefit. The level of benefits provided depends on
the employee’s length of service and salary at retirement age. The Company's defined benefit plan funded with an insurance company.The present
value of the obligation is determined on the basis of year end acturial valuation using the Projected Unit Credit Method, which recognizes each
period of service as giving rise to additional unit of employee benefit entitlement and measures each unit seperately to build up the final
obligation.

There are no other post retirement benefits provided by the Company.

The most recent actuarial valuation of the present value of the defined benefit obligation were carried out as at 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024
by Charan Gupta Consultants Private Limited, Fellow of the Institute of the Actuaries of India. The present value of the defined benefit
obligation, the related current service cost and past service cost, were measured using the projected unit credit method.

(INR in Million)
Movement in the present value of the defined benefit obligation Gratuity
are as follows : (Unfunded)
Particulars FY 24-25 FY 23-24
Opening defined benefit obligation 1.73 1.64
Interest cost 012 0.12
Current service cost 0.19 0.16
Benefits paid (0.43) (0.43)
Actuarial (gain) / loss on obligations 0.06 0,24
Present value of obligation as at the year end 1.67 1.73

Components of amounts recognised in profit or loss and other comprehensive income are as under:

(INR in Million)

Amounts recognised in profit or loss and other comprehensive Gratuity
income: (Unfunded)
Particulars FY 24-25 FY 23-24
Current service cost 0.19 0.16
Interest cost 012 0.12
Amount recognised in profit or loss 0.31 0.28
Acturial (gain)/ loss 0.06 0.24
Amount recognised in other comprehensive income 0.06 0.24
Total 0.37 0.52
The principal assumptions used for the purposes of the actuarial valuations of gratuity are as follows:
Particulars FY 24-25 FY 23-24 FY 22-23
Financial assumption
Discount rate 6.93% 7.23% 7.37%
Expected rate of salary increase 6.00% 6.00% 6.00%
Demographic assumptions
Retirement age 58 Years 58 Years 58 Years
Mortality 100% of IALM 100% of IALM 100% of TALM

(2012-14) (2012-14) (2012-14)
Attrition/ Withdrawal rates, based on age: (per annum)
upto 30 years 3% 3% 3%
31-44 years 2% 2% 2%
above 44 years 1% 1% 1%
Amounts for the current and previous three periods are as follows:
Particular As at March 31, As at March 31, | As at March 31,

2025 2024 2023

Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligation (1.67) (1.73) (1.64)
Fair Value of of Plan Assets 3 =
Funded Assets Surplus/ (Deficit) (1.67) (1.73) (1.64)




Estimates of future salary increases considered in actuarial valuation take account of inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors such
as supply and demand in the employment market.

Bifurcation of PBO at the end of year as per accurial report

Gratuity (Unfunded)
Particulars As at As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 April 1, 2023
Current liability 0.03 0.30 0.25
Non-Current liability 1.64 1.42 1.39
Total PBO at the end of year 1.67 1.73 1.64

These plans typically expose the Company to various risks as follow -

a) Interest risk: Reduction in discount rate in subsequent valuations can increase the plan’s liability.

b) Salary risk: Actual salary increases will increase the Plan’s liability. Increase in salary increase rate assumption in future valuations will also
increase the liability.

¢) Investment risk- If Plan is funded then assets liabilities mismatch & actual investment return on assets lower than the discount rate assumed at
the last valuation date can impact the liability.

d) Mortality & disability - Actual deaths & disability cases proving lower or higher than assumed in the valuation can impact the liabilities.

e) Withdrawals - Actual withdrawals proving higher or lower than assumed withdrawals and change of withdrawal rates at subsequent
valuations can impact Plan’s liability.

Sensitivity Analysis
Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of defined obligation are discount rate and expected salary increase. The sensitivity

analysis below have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the respective assumptions occuring at the end of the reporting
period, while holding all other assumptions constant.

(INR in Million)
. Gratuity
Particul
e 2024-25 2023-24

Impact on present value of defined benefit obligation:
If discount rate is increased by 0.50% (PY 0.50%) (0.09) (0.08)
If discount rate is decreased by 0.50% (PY (.50%) 0.09 0.09
If salary escalation rate is increased by 0.50% (PY 0.50%) 0.09 0.09
If salary escalation rate is decreased by 0.50% (PY 0.50%) (0.09) (0.08)

The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the defined benefit obligation as it is unlikely that the
change in assumption would occur in isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may be correlated. Furthermore, in presenting the above
sensitivity analysis, the present value of the defined benefit obligation has been calculated using the projected unit credit method at the end of the
reporting period, which is the same as that applied in calculating the defined benefit obligation liability recognised in the balance sheet.

Discounted Expected outflow in future years (as provided in actuarial report) (INR in Million)

attinidass 2024-25 [ 202324
Gratuity
Expected outflow in 1st Year 0.03 0.30
Expected outflow in 2nd Year 0.03 0.03
Expected outflow in 3rd Year 0.03 0.02
Expected outflow in 4th Year 0.03 0.03
Expected outflow in 5th Year 0.03 0.02
Expected outflow in 6th Year 0.02 0.02
Expected outflow in 6th Year onwards 1.51 1.30

Leave Encashment

The leave obligations cover the Company’s liability for earned leaves. The amount of provision of INR 0.24 Million (as at 31 March 2024: INR 0.11
Million, 1st April 2023: INR 0.80 Million) is presented as current, since the Company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement for
any of these obligations. Flowever, based on past experience, the Company expects all employees to take the full amount of accrued leave or
require payment within the next 12 months, therefore based on the independent actuarial report, amount of provision has been presented as
current. The amount debited/ (recognized) for the year is:

(INR in Million)
. For year ended For year ended
Particul
i March 31,2025 | March 31, 2024
In Statement of Profit and Loss 1.20 0.08
In Other Comprehensive Income -
Total (Income)/Expense recognised during the year (before tax) 1.20 0.08

The estimates of rate of esclation in salary considered in acturial valuation, take into account inflation, seniority, promotion and othe

factors including supply and demand in employment market.
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Notes to Financial Statements for the Year Ended March 31, 2025

Note 39 : Other Disclosure Requirement in Schedule 111

a) The company does not have any transaction with the companies struck off under section 248 of the
Companies Act 2013 or section 560 of the Companies Act 1956 during the year ended March 31, 2025 and
March 31, 2024.

b) There are no charges or satisfaction which are to be registered with the Registrar of Companies during
the year ended March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024.

) The company complies with the number of layers of companies in accordance with clause 87 of Section 2
of the Act read with the Companies (Restriction on number of layers) rules 2017 during the year ended
March 31, 2025, and March 31, 2024.

d) The company has not invested or traded in cryptocurrency or virtual currency during the year ended
March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024.

e) No proceedings have been initiated on or are pending against the company for holding Benami property
under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transaction Act 1988 (as amended in 2016) (formally the Benami
Transactions (Prohibition) Act 1988 (45 of 1988) and Rules made thereunder during the year ended March
31, 2025, and March 31, 2024.

f) The company has not been declared a wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government
or any government authorities during the year ended March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024.

g) The company has not entered into any scheme of arrangement approved by the competent authority in
terms of sections 232 to 237 of the Companies Act 2013 during the year ended March 31, 2025 and March 31,
2024.

h) During the year ended March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024, the company has not surrendered or
disclosed as income any transactions not recorded in the books of accounts in the course of tax assessments

under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income
Tax Act 1961).

i) During the year ended March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024, the company has not advanced or loaned or
invested funds (either borrowed funds or the share premium or kind of funds) to any other person or
entities, including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or
otherwise) that the intermediary shall:

1. Directly or Indirectly land or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or
on behalf of the company (ultimate beneficiaries) or

2. Provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries,

j) During the year ended March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024, the company has not received any funds from
any persons or entities including foreign entities (Funding party) with the understanding (whether recorded
in writing or otherwise) that the company shall:

1. Directly or Indirectly land or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or
on behalf of the company (ultimate beneficiaries) or

2. Provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries.

Equipments are held in the name of the company as at the Balance sheet date.

1) The Company does not have any Investment Property and intangible assets under development.




Krishnaav Engineering Limited
CIN - U34521DL1989PLC034900
GA-2, BLOCK NO. B-1 EXTENSION, MOHAN CO-OP INDL ESTATE, DELHI, INDIA

Notes to Financial Statements for the Year Ended March 31, 2025

Note 40 : Capital Risk Management

The Company aim to manages its capital efficiently so as to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern and to optimize returns
to shareholders. The capital structure of the Company is based on management’s judgment of the appropriate balance of key elements
in order to meet its strategic and day-to-day needs. We consider the amount of capital in proportion to risk and manage the capital
structure in light of changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. The Company’s policy is to
maintain a stable and strong capital structure with a focus on total equity so as to maintain creditors and market confidence and to
sustain future development and growth of its business. There in no change in the Company capital structure since previous year. For
the purpose of capital management, capital includes equity capital and retained earnings. The Company maintains balance between
debt and equity. The Company monitors its capital management by using a debt-equity ratio, which is total debt divided by total

capital.

The debt equity ratio of the Company is as follows

(INR in Million)
Particulars As at As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 April 1, 2023
Equity Share Capital 482 4.82 4.82
Retained Earnings 52.97 50.02 50.27
Equity 57.79 54.84 55.09
Debts | - | - | -

Debt to Equity Ratio |

Note 41 : Details Regarding dues to MSME Creditors

Disclosure as required under Notification No. GSR 1022(E) dated 11-10-2018 issued by the Department of Company Affairs (as certified

by the Management).

(INR in Million)
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

(a) The principal amount and interest due thereon remaining
unpaid to any supplier

-Principal Amount 13.07 11.39

-Interest Amount 0.09 0.08
(b) The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 Nil Nil
of the MGMED Act, 2006 along with the amounts of payment made!
to the supplier beyond the appointed day.
(c) The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay 0.01 Nil
in making payment (which have been paid beyond the appointed
date during the year) but without adding the interest specified
under the MSMED Act, 2006.
(d) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid 0.01 Nil
(e) The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even 0.09 INill

in the succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues
above are actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of|
disallowance as a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the
MSMED Act, 2006




Krishnaav Engineering Limited
CIN - U34521DL1989PLC034900
GA-2, BLOCK NO. B-1 EXTENSION, MOHAN CO-OP INDL ESTATE, DELHI, INDIA

Notes to Financial Statements for the Year Ended March 31, 2025

Note 42 : Revenue from contracts with customers as per Ind AS 115
(A) Disaggregated revenue information

The table below presents disaggregated revenues from contracts with customers on the basis of geographical spread of the operations of
the Company. The Company believes that this disaggregation best depicts how the nature, amount of revenues and cash flows are

affected by market and other economic factors:

(INR in Million)

Revenue based on Geography For the year ended | For the year ended

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
India 491.17 407 44
Outside India - -
Total 491.17 407.44
(B) Reconciliation of revenue from operations with contracted price (INR in Million)
Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Contracted Price 49117 407 44
Less:
Rebates and discounts - -
Sales return - -
Total 491.17| 407.44

Note 43 : Segment Reporting (Ind AS -108)

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker. The
Company has identified the Directors as the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM). Basis on management assessment, the Company
has only one operating segment. The disclosure requirements of Indian Accounting Standard (IND AS-108) "Segment Reporting" issued

by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India is not applicable to

the Company.




“ajep uonisuer) sy uo Ajdurprosoe pajejsal uaaq aaey

sanuw[eq au ‘a10jaIa) pue ajep uonisuen ay; woly Apansadsoid ¢t gy pur Aidde o3 pado sey Luedwios sy ayep vonisuen sy o foud suonPUIqUOd ssauISNq [[e Jo Juawayeysal axnnbal pnom jey)
uonearjdde aapoadsonal [y woay jatpa: sapraord sty -ajep uonisues) ayj 0 jouid ajep oywads e woly 10 PP UoRISULRI} AY) WOy Apanadsord ¢ot gy pur Ajdde oy uondo ay sapracid ‘101 Sy pur

uonBUIqUIO]) SSauisng 2

‘2]RID0SSE PUE SALIBIPISONS U SJUSLIISIAUT 10] 1500 pawaap se junowe Furded Jyyo snotaard ay pardo sey Auedwo]) ay] 1500 j8 2)PI00SSE PUR SILIPIPISENS UL $]UIUYSIAUL S)L 10J JUNOIDE 0} pajdaja

aaey sjuaaleys [eueuy ajeredas sy Auedwon ayy J1 4500 pawmaap ay se Junowe furdied Jyyo snotaaid Je a)eI0sse PUE SALIRIPISqNS Ul sjuaunsaaut amseaw o} uoydo ayy sapraoid ‘101 SV pur
2)EID0SSE PUE SILIBIPISNS Ul JUdunsasu]  °q

uonIsuen

o ayep a3 uo juawdmba pue juerd ‘Kradord 1oj 3500 pawaap ayy se anpea Surdired yeyy pasn pue Jyyo snotaaid ayy rapun pamsesw sanjea Surdired ayj yim anunuod o3 pajdo sey Aueduwod ay,
1500 pawaa(] e

:suoyduaxa Suwmoroy s papreae sey Auedwon) ay ] gy puy 12pun sjuawannbar ureysad jo voneardde aanpadsonar sy wory suondwaxa uresad smof[e 101 SV PUI 'Sy pu] jo uondope awm 513 uQy
suondwaxa jeuondo gy pul T’V

'SY pui o}

UOTISURI] JO 23RP B JB JSIXd L} S2OUBISLINDID PUe §30) Y] JO SISeq 3 U0 (JUSWNIISUT Jap Ul JUIISIAUT) 19550 [EIUPUL] JO JUIWUSINSEIW PUR UOTJEJJISSE]D ssasse 0] Ajua ue saxnbal 191 gy puj
SANI[IqE]] PUE S]25SE [EIDUBUTJ JO JUIUIAINSEAW PUE UOHEIIFISSE[D) 2

'SV Pu1 0

uomIsueL JO 2)Ep Ay 1a)je 10 uo Furnodo suondesuen o] Apanradsord gor gy puf 1ad se sagqer [epURUY pue sjasse [eouealy 1o sjuawaainbar uoyuBosassp sy Ajdde o) pajosrs sey Aueduio] ay
:SaN[IqeI] pue S}asse [eIdUeUL) Jo uontudodadg  °q

‘GY PU] 0} UOIISURIL} U0 3]ep 3} 18 PAJSIXa Jei) SUOHIPU0D 109[Jal G PU] ai] [iim aduepIodde ur sjunowe 3y juasard 0 Auedwory ayg £q pasn sajewnsa ay |,
saoueape jo Sugunodsiy (A1)
[ppow 550 J1pa1d pajpadxa aip uo paseq sjasse [ewewuy jo yuawredury (i)
*}S0D PASIIIOUIR SB PALIIED SJUSWINLISUL jqap ul sjuaugsaau] (1)
IDOAT 10 LA Se patuied sjuawnnsut Ajnba w sjuaugsaauy (1)

“IvyO snotaard 1epun parmbai jou a1am asal) S8 UOLISUEL JO 1P AU) 18 §Y PUJ YILM 20UPPIOIDE W swayl Surmofjog 10] sajeuwmsa apewr Auedwo)) ay [, Jy o) snoraard yimm Aruojuod ui spew ajep
AWES U 1B S S2]ELWIISa AU} [IM JUJSISU0D ale ¢70g ‘Tdy JST B Se SaIRlnsa Gy PU J0.Ia Ul 2JaM S9}RLILSa asOU L} 20uapiad aannalqo st azawy ssapun ‘(satorjod Suryunodoe ur aduatagtp Aue papal
o jusunsnlpe 19178) vy snotasid yiim aouepiosoe Ul ajep Swes aif) 10] SPELI SAJRIINSI [JIM JUSJSISUOD 3q [[PYS G PU] 0] UOTISURI] JO 31 a1f) 1P Gy PU [ILM a0UBPIOIOE Ul $ajeiunsa s, Anua uy

[sajemsy e
‘syuaweleys [epueuy sy Suuedard ur 1o gy puy yirm souepiodoe ur parpdde uaaq aaey suondadxe Arojepuewt Surmorog aL.

suopjdaoxa Liojepuew gy puj 'y

paneay suondaoxg pue uonydwaxy -y
“Afumpioooe pajejsar uaaq aaey pajuasard spouad sy qe pue ¢zog pady
1 3¢ se sfururea paurejar Suruado ayy ur papraosd usaq sey uopsuer jo edun ayy ‘Ajfurpionay “pajeysar Suraq saaneredwos ypm $gog qady 351 wory joagge ypm gy puy pajdope sey Auedwio]) ay ],
'SV pu] yiim aduepodde ur paredaid syuswaje)s [epueury auopepuels 151y 5, Auedwo)) are asay |,
:(SV puj) prepuels Sununody ueipuy jo uondopy awij 38114 101 (Sy-pul) piepuejg Sununoddy uerpuj Aq panmbai se samsopsiq |

suopepPUoda: uondope GV Ul AWH ISIH | FF 10N
SZ0Z “IE YoIRA PapUd 1834 Y} 10J SJUIIAIRIG [BIDURUL] 0] SRION
VIANI THTIA ALV LSH TANI dO-0D NVHOW ‘NOISNALXd 1-9 "ON D014 T-VD

006FE0D 16861 TATZSFEN - NID
panur| SurnssuiBuyg AveuysLoy]



000 000 000 00°0 (000) 00°0
T9'£01 (8€70) 00801 $E'00T (00°0) PE00T
0TS (%0°0) 6018 66°EF * 66'CT SanI[Iqel] 21N [BJO L
9z'0 (v00) 0€'0 €0 - TED suoislaold 0
0g'E = 0g'e S = TFFI SaNI[IqeI] JUALIMD) IO g
org - 0rg TF8 = [4ig: SUIIQEI] [RIDURUL JUBLIND) SO 1
8¢'6E i 8¢°6¢€ $8°0T - 80T sajqedeg ape1] 1
SauIIqel [eIueUL] e
sapIIqer] juaun) ¢
651 (s7'1) 6T (40 - Z8'L SaNI[IEL] JUSLMD-UOU [BJO ],
6F1 (sF'1) 6T el = <l £ SUOISIAOL] ©
SINIIqeIT JUUIN) UON ¢
60°5S ZrL LE'ES PEFS {00°0) PEFS Aymbg eo1
LT08 Tt ST6F [ (00°0) T00s € Aymbg a0 q
8F n wF 8F - 8T Lmby e
Lmby 1
SHILITIAVIT ANV ALINOI 1
T9LOL (8€°0) 00'80T FE00T = PE00T S14SSV TV.LOL
19'19 = 1919 05°9% = 059% S12SSE JUALIMD [EJ0 T,
89'T z 89°1 09'S - 09°c §]255Y JUaIN)) IO P
88°9 5 88°9 €9 - 1£°9 (19N) s1essy xe[ juaniny 2
00 5 FO'0 100 = 00 S}255¥ [EIOURUY JUSIIND) 120 1
o€ - Foe 0T = 0T sjuajeainba yseo pue ysey 1
£L8°S1 " £LG'CT = = = Sa[qEAIEDDY] Apel] 1
S}asse [BDURUL] g
18°€¢ - 18°€E goTe = ceTe satiojuRAu] B
S}asSSY juaLn’) A
00°9% (s€'0) 8E°9F FRES = F8EsS 5}95SE JULIN3-UOU [BJO ]
= = = = = = SJasSY JuaLIND-UoN Y0 &
820 (8¢°0) SIL 6€0 = 6€°0 (3ou) spasse xey pasdga(] J
b 2 - (s sy 09°F - 09F SJ9SSE [RIDUBUL JUILIND-UOU IO 1
5]O55¢ [eIouRun @
06'8 06'8 s 08'g 088 = T sjasse asN-0}-J3R]  p
- (00°0) 000 . = - sjasse a[qrdueu O
Gg6 = €c'h £9°0 - 90 ssaigord-ur-jiom feyiden  q
£E'TT (068) ¥T1E 8E6E (08'8) 818y TRT juawrdinba pue jueld ‘Ajador] e
S]955E JUALINI-UON] 1
S14SSV 1
% jusunsalpy dVVOl _ juaunsnlpy dVVOl
SV-pul SV-pur SurdnosSay SV-pul SV-pup Burdnorday “Hmwmnc_wM.MMu:M SIe[mOTHE]
£20Z ‘1 [1dy je sy $T0Z ‘I YIBN JE 5 )

€z0z ‘1dV 1510 PU® $TOT ‘YoreW ISTE I8 se J2ays aduefeq ay) uo uoiydope gy pul Jo a3 “d



5T o) Zro 280 1eadk ayj 1oy awoduy aarsuayardwo)) ferop
Gr0 @0 = 1234 U] 0¥ SUWOOUT IATSUIYRIAWOD 13YI0
) B B ss07 10 jyord 03 paijisse]dal aq [Im
jey) swajt 0} funyejaz jrpan /(asuadxa) xey awoouy (1)

) B . (sasso]) pue | q
Suren) - §8077 10 JLJOI] 03 PALJISSEal aq [[lv Jey) swayf (1)

(81°0) (sr0) -

S50 0 JIJOI] O] PAIISSR[IAL aq 10U [[IM
900 900 - ey sway 0} Sunjepy) npain /(asuadx) xe | awodu (1)
(12ny) suonefiqo
(Fz0) (Fz0) - ® Jjauag pauya uo (Sass0) PUE SUILD) JUIAINSEAAY] -

$50] 10 Jijord 0] payIsse[al aq Jou [[im jey) sway (1) -y

awodut aarsuayardwod YO
(z0°0) (76'0) 80 1eak ay 103 (s507) Agorg
SF0 (ze0) 9,0 Xe[ pausjac] -
- - = XeJ jualmyy -
Bsuadx Xe],
8£'0 (sz'1) €91 xe], a10§ag (ss07) Agoig
LEETE STT rAS45 sasuadxy [ejoL
96'06 - 9606 sasuadxa Iy -
8¢ = [6°¢ asuadxa UOEZRIOWE pue uogenaida] -
600 = 600 S)500 adueUL] -
6591 Lt | FesT € asuadxa sjyauaq sadopdury -
0o = 00 SOLIOJUIAUL UL UL -
E€1°C0E - €raoe POWINSUOD S[ELIDJEW JO JS07) -
SHSNAIXT
SLET = CLUETF aNuIANY (B0,
=y} - <0 WOy B_BYD -
6T ELY = 6T ELT suonerad() woly snusaay -
AONIATYU
juaunsnipy dVVDI uondope awy
“pu : N sIenar
SRS SV-pur Burdnoxgay 15114 03 I1ON fed

$20T “YPTRIN ISTE PIPUS 1834 313 10§ 5507 pue J1joig Jo Judwaie)s Ay uo uopdope Sy puf Jo PP D



Krishnaav Engineering Limited
CIN - U34521DL1989PLC034500
GA-2, BLOCK NO. B-1 EXTENSION, MOHAN CO-OP INDL ESTATE, DELHI, INDIA

Notes to Financial Statements for the Year Ended March 31, 2025

Note 45 : Corporate Social Responsibility

As per Section 135 of the companies act, 2013, a company, meeting the applicability threshold, needs to spend at least 2% of its average net profit for
the immediately preceding three financial years on corporate social responsibility (CSR) activities. The areas for CSR activities are eradication of
hunger and malnutrition, promoting education, art and culture, healthcare, destitute care and rehabilitation, environment sustainability, disaster
relief and rural development projects. A CSR committee has been formed by the company as per the act. The fund were primarily allocated to a
corpus and utilized through the year on these activities which are specified in Schedule VII of the Companies Act,2013.

The company is not having net profit as stipulated in the relevant provisions of Companies Act, The company is not required to earmark funds for
the purpose of Corporate Social Responsibility.

Note 46 : Leases (Ind AS -116)
The Company has also recognised INR 1.85 Millions (31 March 2024, INR 0.03 Million) as rent expenses during the year which pertains to short-term
leases / low value assets (Refer Note 26)

Asat As at Asat

Particula
e March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 April 1, 2023

The Balance sheet discloses the following amounts
relating to leases:
Leasehold Land 8.70 8.80 8.90

Lease Liabilities - - -

. For the year ended For the year ended
Rartieuln March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Amounts recognised in statement of profit and
loss:

Depreciation charged on Right of Use Assets
Leasehold Land 0.10 0.10

Interest Expense included in Finance Cost - -
Total cash outflow for leases during financial year - -
(excluding short term leases and
including interest)

Additions to the right of use assets during the - -
current financial year

Note 47
Balance in the accounts of debtors, creditors and advances are subject to confirmation/ reconciliation/adjustment from the respective parties.

Note 48
Proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 for maintaining books of account using accounting software which has a feature of
recording audit trail (edit log) facility is applicable w.e.f. April 1, 2023 to the Company , which are companies incorporated in India.

Note 49

(a) The financial statements have been prepared as per Division II of the Schedule 11T of the Companies Act, 2013, Previous year's figures have been
recast / restated wherever required.

(b) Figures has been reported in Million.

(c) The Figures have been rounded off to nearest Million and any immaterial mismatch between the total & sums of the amounts are due

to rounding off.

Note 50

Notes 1 to 50 form an integral part of the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025, the statement of Profit and Loss, Cash Flow Statement & Statement of
Changes in Equity for the year ended on that date.

As per our report of even date attached

For Jain Kapoor & Associates For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Krishnaav Engineering Limited

Firm Regd Ng.019722N REVDJJ\  Badsge

Revati Talwar Gupta Raj Kumar Si&\
Director Director
DIN : 07262488 DIN : 07963035

Place : New Delhi
Date : 23rd August 2025




